
Town Council Minutes           July 23, 2019  P a g e  | 1  

 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
SPECIAL TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

STANDISH, MAINE 
TUESDAY, JULY 23, 2019 

STANDISH MUNICIPAL CENTER 
6:00 PM 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Libby called the meeting to order and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited.  
 
ROLL CALL 
Councilors present: Gaba, Leclerc, Libby, Nesbitt, Paul and Pomerleau.  
Councilor Delcourt was excused. 
 
REPORT OF THE TOWN MANAGER 
Bill Giroux explained that he wanted to brief the Council on the status the process to convert 
streetlights to LED lights.  He reminded them that the towns of Windham, Gorham, Raymond and 
Standish participated in a study run by RealTerm Energy.  The study was completed sooner than 
expected and the towns are being asked to commit to the project in the near future, he noted that if 
any town bows out it will change the cost of the project for the other towns.  He explained that 
Standish has 190 lights that will be updated, the project cost with a buffer is $150,000, this includes 
all the lights and the smart system that allows the brightness of the lights to be changed by a 
software program.  He noted included in the cost is approximately $27,000 to purchase the rights 
from CMP to install our lights on their poles, the installation will be provided by an independent 
contractor.  He stated that the projected savings after a 4-year payback period is approximately a 
half-million dollars over 20-years.  He explained that the $150,000 project cost requires a referendum 
vote in November followed a Special Town Meeting in December. He noted that this matter will come 
back before the Council as a vote to bring the project to the voters.  He said that he doesn’t take 
lightly scheduling a special referendum and special town meeting, however this conversion will be a 
savings to the town and the costs increase if we wait until June. 
 
Councilor Leclerc asked it this was approved by the voters would it take priority over already 
scheduled projects? He noted that there are a number of projects on the backburner. 
 
Mr. Giroux said that he wouldn’t categorize it that way, some projects take longer than others.  He 
noted that sometimes there is money left over from a project and those funds remain in the account 
until a decision is made to pay down debt. 
 
Councilor Nesbitt asked if the referendum questioned would be written to inform the voters that 
other towns need to participate in the conversion?  
 
Mr. Giroux said that he was not sure how that would be written, he said that that was a good 
suggestion.   
 



Town Council Minutes           July 23, 2019  P a g e  | 2  

NEW BUSINESS   
77-19 Waive Bid Process for the Purchase and Installation of a Steel Guardrail on Whites 
Bridge Road [Pomerleau] 
    
Moved by Pomerleau seconded by Leclerc to amend the order as follows: 
 
FURTHER ORDERED that the attached quote from the Gorham Fence Company for furnishing and 

installing 137.5 feet of steel guardrail is hereby accepted in the amount of $13,860 as recommended 

by the Capital Improvements Committee, and (Unanimous)  

Chair Libby called for discussion on the order as amended. 
 
Councilor Nesbitt questioned if this was an emergency situation that needs to get done right away? 

Public Works Director, Roger Mosely explained that this project has been under review for some time, 

this proposal from Gorham Fence will achieve the required results.  

Chair Libby called for additional discussion, hearing none he called for the vote. 
 

Whereas Section 302(f) of the Standish Charter requires a competitive bid process for transactions exceeding $3,500 in value, 

unless so waived by the Town Council, and 

Whereas the Public Works Department has investigated the stone retaining wall in the vicinity of 657 Whites Bridge Road 

where a number of accidents have occurred damaging the wall, and with the wall being integral to the road, protection is 

needed for the safety of vehicles and the preservation of the wall, and 

WHEREAS the topography and tree growth behind the wall limits the repair options and methods and the Gorham Fence 

Company has experience working on this retaining wall, now be it  

ORDERED that the bidding requirements for the purchase and installation of a steel guardrail is hereby waived, and 

FURTHER ORDERED that the attached quote from the Gorham Fence Company for furnishing and installing 137.5 feet of steel 

guardrail is hereby accepted in the amount of $13,860 as recommended by the Capital Improvements Committee, and  

FURTHER ORDERED that the Town Manager is authorized, on behalf of the Town to execute related contract documents. 

VOTE: 6 Yeas  
 
78-19 Award Bid and Authorize Contract to Purchase a Truck for Parks & Recreation 
Department [Pomerleau]  
 
Councilor Pomerleau explained that Arundel Ford submitted three bids and the order will need to be 
amended. 
 
Moved by Pomerleau seconded by Leclerc to amend the order as follows: 
 
ORDERED the attached bid from Arundel Ford of Arundel, Maine for this truck in the amount of $30,143 is 
hereby accepted, and (Unanimous)  
 

Chair Libby called for discussion on the order as amended. 
 
Councilor Nesbitt asked where the additional $143 would come from? 
 
Mr. Giroux said that the $143 can be taken from the Recreation Maintenance Account.  
  



Town Council Minutes           July 23, 2019  P a g e  | 3  

WHEREAS as a bid process has been conducted for the purchase of a truck for the Parks & Recreation Department in 
accordance with section 302 (f) of the Standish Charter, now be it  

 
ORDERED the attached bid from Arundel Ford of Arundel, Maine for this truck in the amount of $30,143 is hereby accepted, 

and (Unanimous)  
 

FURTHER ORDERED that the Town Manager, is authorized on behalf of the Town to execute related contract documents.  

 
VOTE: 6 Yeas  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Moved by Libby seconded by Leclerc and voted to move into an executive session will be held for the 

purpose of discussions of Real estate matters pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C), in addition the 

Town Manager will join the Council in the executive session and no further business will be conducted 

after the executive session. (Unanimous)  

Moved by Nesbitt seconded Pomerleau and voted to arise from the executive session. The Council 

arose from the executive session at 6:30 p.m. 

PUBLIC ITEMS 
There were no public items at this meeting. 
 

Moved by Nesbitt seconded by Paul to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 6:31 p.m. by unanimous 

consent.  

Submitted by: _____________________________ 
Clerk/Secretary  


